
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Richard Handley, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
October 13, 2010 

4:30 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public comments. 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the September 22, 2010 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of a purchase order to S & J Supply in the 

amount of $78,621.98 for the purchase of iron flex couplings for the 
Oak View Reservoir No. 2 project seismic retrofit. 

c. Recommend approval of an expenditure of $6,500 for the 
replacement of sewage pump grinders for the Coyote Ramp 
restrooms. 

d. Resolution approving, as a responsible agency under CEQA, the 
Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company Pipeline Project. 

  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Water Resources Committee Minutes 
b. Recreation Committee Minutes 

 1
 



 2

7. Resolution awarding a contract to Lightning Fence Co Inc. in the amount 
of $106,904 for the Fence Upgrade. 

 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 

8. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch 
in the amount of $58,140 for the purchase of rainbow trout, pending water 
quality report results. 

 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Recommend approval of the adjustment to the Watershed Coordinator 

funding. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Recommend approval to change banking institutions from Bank of 

America to Rabobank, N.A. for General Fund, Accounts Payable Fund, 
Payroll Fund, Visa Fund and Money Market Investing. 

 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
11. Recommendation to approve the submitted Reserve Statement continuing 

to build additional Un-Restricted and Un-Designated reserves. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
12. Ordinance prescribing a system of business administration. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Ordinance 
 
13. Recommend approval for the execution of an agreement to transfer the 

District’s email service to Google Apps. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
14 Information Items: 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Letter of appreciation from AWA. 
c. News Articles 
d. Investment Report 

 
15. Adjournment  
  

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext. 
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
September 22, 2010 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held September 22, 2010 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Handley, Kaiser, Word, Hicks 
and Baggerly were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There were four staff members and four members of the public in attendance.  
President Handley led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public comments. 
 

None 
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 
  Mr. Wickstrum discussed the meeting he had with Jim Kentosh of United 
Water Conservation District.  They are interested in obtaining 500 acre feet of 
Casitas entitlement water that we are not using or selling to another party.  This 
would be handled in a letter agreement and they would pay us the table a 
amount at $17 per acre foot. They need the water around November 1st.  The 
agreement with Luz Solar has fallen through.  Palmdale Water District is 
interested as they have some debts owed to Mojave West Irrigation District.  This 
is an opportunity to move water to take care of some of their debts.  We will hear 
more on this in the coming weeks. 
 

We learned that on the watershed coordinator position three of the ten 
parties decided not to share the costs.  This would increase the amount from 
$1,778 to $2,667.   
 

Ron has asked me to inform you that Sostre has completed the work on 
our website.  It now includes a rate calculator; you can see the lake level and the 
site is more manageable.   
 

Bill and I attended the Water Issues Committee yesterday and United 
Water Conservation District discussed their progress, struggles and issues 
regarding Freeman Diversion and Santa Felicia Dam.  Millions have been spent 
and many millions more will be spent.  There is a new fisheries study online that 
their committee developed providing alternatives for the agencies to review to 
assist steelhead moving through the diversion. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Hicks added it was an eye opener to hear what United is going 
through.   
 



 2

Director Kaiser encouraged Mr. Merckling to apply for the Theodore 
Roosevelt award with ACWA to highlight the things that are being done regarding 
conservation. 
 
4. Consent Agenda      ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the September 8, 2010 Board Meeting. 
b. Resolution authorizing the execution of an agreement with Ernst 

and Young for audit services for the State Water Project. 
c. Recommend approval of a purchase order in the amount of 

$31,640 to EP Construction for Robles-Casitas Canal panel 
replacement.  

 
 Director Word questioned the support for the Watershed Coordinator and 
thought it was approved for the $1,778 amount and that anything above that 
would need to be brought back for consideration.  Mr. Wickstrum agreed to 
review it at the next board meeting. 
 
 The consent agenda was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed, with Director Baggerly abstaining from approval of the 
minutes, by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Hicks, Word, Kaiser, Handley  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-26. 
 
5. Bills        APPROVED 
 

On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the bills were approved. 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Recreation Committee Minutes 

 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed, the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
 
7. Resolution supporting the application to the State of California Department 

of Parks and Recreation for Recreation Trails Grant Funds. 
         ADOPTED 
   

  The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Hicks, Word, Kaiser, Handley  



 3

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-27. 
 
8. Resolution awarding a bid to Oilfield Electric in the amount of $143,390    

for the 4(M) Pump Plant electrical upgrade.  ADOPTED 
 

Mr. Wickstrum explained that engineering received competitive bids and is 
recommending award of the lowest responsible bidder to Oilfield Electric.  We 
received a protest to the bid award.  Representatives from Coleman-Pacific are 
here.  It is the recommendation of our Principal Engineer to award the bid to 
Oilfield Electric.  The discrepancy is believed to be waived. 
 

Byron Coleman of Coleman-Pacific, Inc. addressed the board and felt that 
it was consequential.  We spent a lot of time to put the bid package together.  
The job is within $60.  Our competitor was not fully responsive and lacked a 
piece of required documentation.  All bids submitted must include a signed 
notice.  He requested reconsideration. 
 

Alan Fletcher of Oilfield Electric explained that our take on this is it is 
inconsequential as well.  Everybody puts a lot of time in these bids.  The 
language says inconsequential items can be waived.  Ordinarily we will be 
advised of an addendum.  We were not aware of the addendums.  It was issued 
three days before the due date of the bid.  Upon finding it we submitted it.  It had 
no consequence to our pricing.  We feel that it is insignificant and rectified it as 
soon as made aware of it. 
 

Mr. Mathews explained that you have the ability to waive as an 
inconsequential irregularity and concurred with staff’s opinion.  In this case it 
says the district may.  Director Baggerly asked if the work is this something that 
Oilfield is familiar with.  Mr. Cole explained that Oilfield has bid projects 
successfully with us before.  Director Baggerly asked if Coleman-Pacific has 
made bids to us before.  Mr. Cole was not aware of them bidding in the past.  It is 
the Board’s discretion to waive it.  The purpose of having the contractor 
acknowledge the addendum is to avoid a change order.  The addendum clarified 
three pieces of equipment would be provided by Casitas.  Mr. Fletcher or Oilfield 
stated they made the assumption that those three pieces of equipment were 
included.  
 
 The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Hicks and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Hicks, Word, Kaiser, Handley  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-28. 



 4

 
9. Resolution awarding a bid to Paso Robles Tank in the amount of $160,500      

for the Ojai 4(M) Reservoir No. 1 interior coating project. ADOPTED 
 

The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Hicks, Word, Kaiser, Handley  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-29. 
   
10. Resolution awarding a bid to Olympus and Associates in the amount of 

$280,540 for the Oak View Reservoir No. 2 interior coating project. 
          ADOPTED 
   

The resolution was offered by Director Word, seconded by Director Hicks 
and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Baggerly, Hicks, Word, Kaiser, Handley  
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 10-30. 
 
11. Consideration of participating in costs for extra work to protect utilities at 

the Fresno Canyon and Foster Park embankment projects. 
          APPROVED  
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed with Directors Hicks and Kaiser opposing, the above recommendation 
with participation up to $6,200 was approved.  
 
12. Ordinance prescribing a system of business administration 
       TABLED TO NEXT MEETING 
   
 This item was tabled as Mr. Mathews questioned the procedures for 
adoption of an ordinance and suggested that this item be brought back to the 
next meeting. 

  
 
13. Recommend approval of the Asset Disposal Policy.  APPROVED 
 

  On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser and passed, 
the above recommendation was approved. 
 
14 Information Items: 



 5

 
a. Recreation Area report for August 
b. Investment Report 

 
Director Hicks complimented the lake on the good August results.  

Director Word questioned the percentage of boats that fail inspection.  Director 
Baggerly expressed concerns about the relocation of rattlesnakes.  Mr. 
Wickstrum and Ms. Belser explained that employees have been trained, have the 
necessary equipment and have worked with animal control and it is important to 
relocate the snakes outside of the campsites. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum introduced Bob McDonald as a candidate for Division 4. 
 
15. Adjournment  
  
 President Handley adjourned the meeting at 5: 21 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Secretary 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: TODD EVANS, ASSISTANT ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN A PURCHASE ORDER WITH 
S&J SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $78,621.98 FOR FLEXIBLE COUPLINGS 

DATE:  OCTOBER 6, 2010 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to sign a 
purchase order in the amount of $78,621.98 with S&J Supply for two (2) 30” EBAA Iron Flex 
Couplings 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
As part of the Oak View Reservoir re-coat and retro-fit, the 30” inlet and outlet are being fitted 
with flex couplings.   The flexible couplings will allow the reservoir to move independently from 
the piping in the event of a large earthquake.  Steel reservoirs with rigid piping connections 
have shown to be vulnerable to damage in a large earthquake.  The flexible couplings will be 
installed by Casitas personnel. 
 
Bids were obtained from vendors.  The bid results were: 
 

S&J Supply   $78,621.98 inc tax 
Ferguson   $79,946.95 inc tax 
C. Wells Supply  $81,345.00 inc tax 
H.D. Supply Water Works $81,900.94 inc tax 
Famcon   $91,363.00 inc tax 

 
The FY 2010-11 Budget has $391,185 for work at the Oak View Reservoir No. 2, of which 
$280,540 has been awarded to the interior coating contract, leaving $108,225 for the seismic 
retrofit flex couplings.  The purchase of the two flex couplings is within the current budget 
amount, but in excess of the General Manager’s authority to approve without the Board’s 
consent. 
 
 
 
 

 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Interdepartmental Memo 
 
 
DATE:  September 30, 2010  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Consideration for the Board of Directors to approve an expenditure of $6,500 for two 

grinders at Coyote Ramp restrooms.     
   
 
 

 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board approve an expense of approximately $6,500 to purchase two new 
pumps grinders and professional electrical rewiring at the Coyote restrooms.  
 
Background: 
The Coyote Launch Ramp area includes a restroom facility that relies on two grinder pumps to process 
and move waste to the vault over the hill at Campground I, or also know as the Coyote dumps station. 
 One grinder pump functions at a time.  The second grinder is in place in the event of grinder pump 
failure.  Failure to grind and pump in that particular facility has a potential for severe consequences 
due to the slope grade and proximity to Lake Casitas.    
 
Analysis: 
The grinder pumps have been in service since about February of 1997.  Over the years they have been 
serviced and repaired.  Currently only one grinder pump is in working order.  Rather than removing, 
cleaning and servicing the grinders again, it is recommended to purchase two new grinders.  The 
existing working grinder will then be available as a stand by, and the non-working grinder may be 
used for its replacement parts if needed.   
 
Maintenance staff will perform the exchange of grinders, but the electrical issue needs to be address 
by a professional electrician.  It is necessary to relocate the junction box from the current location to 
above ground at restroom building.  Together the project will cost approximately $6,500. 
 
The purchase of the grinders and the electrical work is not identified in the current budget, but due to 
the urgency especially during the busy season, it is recommended we replace them now, rather than 
next fiscal year.  
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Inter-Office Memorandum 

 
DATE:    October 8, 2010 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Ron Merckling, Water Conservation and Public Affairs Manager 
RE: Consideration of Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company Automation Upgrades 

Project’s Notice of Determination and California Department of Fish and Game 
Environmental Filing.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company 
Pipeline Project’s Notice of Determination and California Department of Fish and Game 
Environmental filing and designates the General Manager as Casitas’ responsible representative 
for managing this project;  
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

 
Casitas is required to approve the lead agency’s environmental determinations to meet Proposition 
50 grant requirements. The California Department of Public Health (CDPH) has acted as the "lead 
agency" for this project for purposes of environmental analysis. Casitas is acting as a "responsible 
agency" under CEQA and is responsible for considering the analysis, findings and mitigation 
measures of the CDPH and reaching its own independent conclusions on the Senior Canyon 
Mutual Water Company Pipeline Project. (CEQA Guidelines section 15096.)  
 
The Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company Pipeline Project will create greater conjunctive use of 
local water supplies by allowing the Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company to utilize more of 
their local groundwater supplies. The project objective is to reduce Senior Canyon’s water demand 
on Lake Casitas’ surface water supplies. 
 
The Senior Canyon Upgrades project includes state grant funds in the amount of $488,462 to 
complete a pipeline replacement and to install automation upgrades. Casitas contribution will be 
$106,654 to project costs and an additional $17,184 in staff time. Senior Canyon has contributed 
$90,000 in project costs and will provide an additional $10,010 in staff time.  
 
 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 

 RESOLUTION APPROVING AS A RESPONSIBLE AGENCY UNDER CEQA; THE 
SENIOR CANYON MUTUAL WATER COMPANY PIPELINE PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) has acted as the "lead 
agency" for this project for purposes of environmental analysis.  

 
WHEREAS, Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas) is acting as a "responsible agency" 

under CEQA and is responsible for considering the analysis, findings and mitigation measures of the 
CDPH and reaching its own independent conclusions on whether and how to approve the Senior 
Canyon Mutual Water Company Pipeline Project. (CEQA Guidelines section 15096.); and 

  
WHEREAS, Casitas, acting as a responsible agency, has independently considered the 

determinations regarding this project approved by the California Department of Public Health on 
May 10, 2010; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company Pipeline Project will create greater 
conjunctive use of local water supplies by allowing the Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company to 
utilize more of their local groundwater supplies; and  
 

WHEREAS, Casitas’ long-term water management strategy includes multiple initiatives to 
help ensure greater water supply availability for Casitas’ customers during long-term drought 
conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, this project will result in less water demand from the Senior Canyon Mutual 
Water Company on Lake Casitas’ surface water supplies. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Casitas Municipal Water District’s Board 
of Directors as follows:  

SECTION 1. Acting in its capacity as a responsible agency for purposes of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the Board of Directors hereby directs the Secretary to 
the Board to record a Notice of Determination with the Office of Planning and Research and 
to submit a filing with the California Department of Fish and Game as a responsible party. 
SECTION 2. Casitas hereby approves the Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company Pipeline 
Project and designates the General Manager as Casitas’ responsible representative for 
managing this project; and  

 
 ADOPTED this 13th day of October, 2010. 

 
 
______________________________ 
President, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 



ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 













































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  September 20, 2010 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Water Resources Committee Meeting of September 20, 2010 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Director Baggerly and Director Word.  Staff – Ron Merckling.  Public – Matt 

Bryant, Ventura River County Water District. 
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board Comments.  None. 

 
4. Manager Comments. 

The General Manager stated that the United Water Conservation District has 
requested to take delivery of 575 acre-feet of Casitas’ 2010 State Water deliveries and 
is willing to pay Casitas $17.50.  United needs the additional water in November 2010 
in order to meet its obligations to Port Hueneme.  In order to do so, the paperwork for 
the delivery must be filed by early October 2010.  Time is of the essence.  This 
temporary transfer has occurred in the past without money being exchanged between 
agencies, but it is recognized that at least the prevailing turn-back pool cost is 
acceptable at his time.  This temporary transfer will not impact the current progress to 
find other buyers for the 2010 water.  Staff and consultants are still working on a 1+1 
transfer to Palmdale, although there is resistance to this transfer at the Department of 
Water Resources.  The Committee concurred with the General Manager’s action to 
assist United at this time. 

 
5. Discussion regarding the Urban Water Management Plan.  

Mr. Merckling reported on the progress in developing the 2010 Urban Water 
Management Plan.  Director Baggerly suggested that the recommendation to collect 
flushing water be struck from the plan due to its problematic implementation.  Several 
more suggested changes were discussed in the Committee meeting. 
 
Mr. Merckling stated that it is highly likely that the filing date will be extended to July 1, 
2011, which should be adequate time to get the UWMP completed.  It was also noted 
that new standards and requirements for the Plan are likely to come from the State 
and be incorporated into the 2010 Plan. 
 

6. Water Survey grant with the City of Oxnard. 
Mr. Merckling reported that joint effort to obtain a water survey grant through Prop 84 



grant funding made it through the initial round of project approvals at the County level. 
A MOU agreement is to be brought to the Board for consideration.  The grant will focus 
on a region-wide water use efficiency program, specifically landscape irrigation system 
improvements.  The Casitas cost share after grant reimbursements for the three-year 
program is $12,700.  The MOU agreement and cover memorandum will be moved 
forward to the Board. 
 

7.  Review of City of Ventura agreement. 
The General Manager shared the City of Ventura water certification letter with the 
Committee, noting that the City’s purchase from Casitas was 6001.68 acre-feet while 
the out-of-district balance is stated as 771.54 acre-feet.  The General Manager had 
met with City management in August 2010 to discuss the agreement and the priority to 
match in-district demands without resulting in out-of-district water deliveries.  It was 
probably known at that time that there was an over-purchase guided on the basis of 
meeting the 6000 acre-foot take or par requirement of the agreement.  Director Word 
stated that given there was not extraneous circumstances as in previous years, the 
District should charge the City for the out-of-district water deliveries.  The General 
Manager will proceed with further negotiations with the City to resolve the issues of the 
1995 agreement. 
 

8.  Rotary partnership regarding water education grant. 
Mr. Merckling suggested additional participation by the District in the Rotary’s efforts to 
provide water education to local youth.  Ways to participate are to apply for water 
education grants through Casitas, participate in education fairs, and purchase water 
chemistry sets.  The Committee expressed appreciation to the Rotary Club for their 
continued efforts in youth water education programs. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 6, 2010 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of October 4, 2010 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.  Directors Baggerly and Hicks 
 Staff – PSM Carol Belser 
 Public – Gary Wolfe 
 
2. Public comments.  None. 

 
3. Board/Management comments. 

Staff reported on the letter by Congressman Elton Gallegly in assisting with a 
determination on the recreation agreement status.   
 
Staff reported that the Chill Cook-off did occur during the first weekend of October.  
Attendance seem light, noting that there were several other events in Ventura and 
Carpinteria on the same day. 
 

4. Discussion regarding User Fees. 
Carol Belser shared with the Committee the FY 2009-10 financial statements, the 
schedule of user fees and charges, a comparison of fees for other recreation areas, 
and a pie chart of the revenue sources for the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  In 
general, the Committee felt that with the current economic stresses, competition for 
recreational dollars with other recreational areas, and a near balance between 
expenses and revenues, that no changes would be suggested by the committee.  
Carol Belser suggested that the fees charged for trailer storage are behind that 
charged by others, and that the Committee should consider a small change in trailer 
storage fees.  The trailer storage area has been full and there is a waiting list to get 
into the area.  This suggestion may come before the Board after further assessment 
by staff. 
 

5. Fish purchase bid update. 
Carol Belser reported that staff has received three bids for providing trout to Lake 
Casitas.  Staff are reviewing each bid and in contact with the lowest bidder to 
determine if there are any issues with fish being delivered from Nebraska.  The 
Committee reviewed concerns regarding fish mortality, invasive species certification 
(quagga and zebra mussel contamination).  Staff will provide a recommendation to the 
Board. 
 



6. Sewage pump purchase which is an unbudgeted replacement. 
Because this item is unbudgeted and not an emergency, staff are bringing this 
recommendation for pump replacement purchase to the Committee and Board for 
approval of the expenditure.  The ten year old pumps are in need of replacement as 
soon as possible.  One pump is operable, but if it fails, the Coyote Ramp restrooms 
are inoperable.  Ten years is more than the expected life of such a sewage pump, and 
more regular maintenance and replacement of these pumps should be programmed 
into the park maintenance schedule.  The Committee concurred that this item be 
moved to the Board’s consent agenda and staff move forward with the pump 
replacement. 

 
7. Incidents and Comments. 

The Committee commented on the recent “Thumps-down” in the Ojai Valley News 
regarding the entrance fee to go to the café and the lack of parking at the entrance 
gate.  Mr. Gary Wolfe commented that the fee arrangement has been working well and 
eliminated most of the abuse of the café pass.  Customers are coming to the café to 
buy a meal and get credit based on the entrance fee.  There are no suggestions to 
changing the current parking configuration at the park entrance. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM:  NEIL COLE, CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AWARD CONTRACT-FENCE UPGRADE AT LAKE CASITAS SPECIFICATION 10-331 

DATE:  SEPTEMBER 27, 2010 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt the resolution accepting the proposal submitted by 
the lowest responsible bidder and award the contract for the construction of the Fence Upgrade at Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area, Specification 10-331 to Lightning Fence Co Inc. of Poway in the amount of 
$106,204.  It is further recommended that the President of the Board execute the agreement for said 
work and the Board authorize staff to proceed with the administration of the contract. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The project will replace the existing barbed wire fence with a 6 foot high PVC coated chain link fence 
topped with barbed wire.  The new fence will begin at the trailer storage area and continue along Santa 
Ana Road to near the saddle dam.  The chain link fence will be stopped and the existing barbed wire 
will remain in several low and high spots to facilitate animal passage.  The fence will provide additional 
security and reduce the chances of unauthorized vehicles and vessels from entering the lake. 
 
The project was advertised through F.W. Dodge.   Five bidders submitted proposals.  The bid results, 
including the additive alternate for the PVC coated fence fabric are 
 

FIRM AMOUNT 
Lightning Fence $106,204 
Magnum Fence $107,089 
Guardian Fence $131,833 
Watkins Fence $150,499 
Newtech Engineering $162,732 
 
Lightning Fence Co Inc. has a current and valid contractor’s license and has completed similar projects. 
 
NEPA and CEQA have been completed on the project. 
 
The FY 2010-11 Budget allocated $140,000 to install the new fence. 
 



U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2010\10-13-10\Resolution fence.doc 

 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE FENCE UPGRADE AT LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

SPECIFICATION NO. 10-331 
 

WHEREAS, the District invited bids from qualified contractors for the above-referenced 
project, and 
 

WHEREAS, the District received five bids, 
 
WHEREAS, Lightning Fence Co. Inc submitted the low bid in the amount of $106,904,  
 
WHEREAS, CEQA and NEPA have been completed for the project, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 

Water District as follows: 
 

1. That the proposal from Lightning Fence Co Inc. is responsive. 
 
2. That the proposal from Lightning Fence Co Inc. in the amount of $106,904 is accepted 

for the Fence Upgrade at Lake Casitas Project, Specification No. 10-331 and a contract awarded. 
 

3. That staff is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the administration of the 
contract with Lightning Fence Co Inc.  

 
 

ADOPTED this                   day of                                        , 2010. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
President, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Secretary, 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 





CEC-10-69 

CATEGORICAL EXCLUSION CHECKLIST 
Casitas Municipal Water District  

Fence Replacement at Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
 

South-Central California Area Office                          August 24, 2010 
 
Purpose and Need for Action:  The Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation), on behalf of 
Ventura County and Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD), built Casitas Dam in 1959.  As 
a result, Lake Casitas was created along with a developed recreation area at the north end of the 
lake, collectively known as the Lake Casitas Recreational Area.  Reclamation owns Casitas Dam 
and the lands surrounding the lake, while CMWD is the operations and maintenance entity.  
Lake Casitas is located in Ventura County, California (Figure 1). 
 
Lake Casitas is a drinking water reservoir so no body contact (swimming) or dumping is 
allowed.  Currently, three-tier barbed-wire fencing is in place along Santa Ana Road on the 
northern shore to prevent unauthorized use and access of the lake.  Due to age and vandalism, the 
barbed wire fencing is broken down in most areas and is no longer effective and needs to be 
replaced.  The purpose of the Proposed Action is to prevent unauthorized use of the lake in order 
to protect the water quality. 
 
Proposed Action:  On Reclamation’s behalf, CMWD proposes to replace approximately 5,800 
linear feet of barbed wire fencing with 6-foot high chain link fencing along Santa Ana Road on 
the northern shore of Lake Casitas.  In general, the new fence would take up the same footprint 
as the existing barbed wire fencing and would follow Santa Ana Road, beginning at the trailer 
storage area and continue eastward to the property line near the saddle dam (Figures 1 and 2).  
The new chain link fencing would be topped with barbed wire and the posts would be secured in 
a 12-inch hole, 36 inches deep, and filled with concrete (Figure 3). 
 
Equipment to be used includes: hand tools, auger mounted truck/tractor; pick-up trucks; a dump 
truck; and a concrete truck.  The Proposed Action would begin as soon as approved and would 
take approximately 4 weeks to complete. 
 
Environmental commitments related to the Proposed Action are included below. 
 
Exclusion Category:  516 DM 14.5 D (1)  Maintenance, rehabilitation, and replacement of 
existing facilities which may involve a minor change in size, location, and/or operation. 
 
 

  



CEC-10-69 

  

 



CEC-10-69 

 
 Figure 2. Overview of the fence replacement portion along Santa Ana Road 

  



CEC-10-69 

 
    Figure 3. Diagram of standard chain link fencing to be installed 

  



CEC-10-69 

Evaluation of Criteria for Categorical Exclusion 
 
 
1. This action would have a significant 
effect on the quality of the human 
environment. 

 No   X          Uncertain                Yes         

 
 

  

2. This action would have highly 
controversial environmental effects or 
involve unresolved conflicts concerning 
alternative uses of available resources. 

 No    X           Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

Evaluation of Exemptions to Actions within Categorical Exclusion 
 
 
1. This action would have significant 
impacts on public health or safety. 

  
 
No   X            Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

2. This action would have significant 
impacts on such natural resources and 
unique geographical characteristics as 
historic or cultural resources; parks, 
recreation, and refuge lands; wilderness 
areas; wild or scenic rivers; national natural 
landmarks; sole or principal drinking water 
aquifers; prime farmlands; wetlands; 
floodplains; national monuments; migratory 
birds; and other ecologically significant or 
critical areas. 

 No    X           Uncertain                Yes         

 
 

  

3. This action would have highly 
uncertain and potentially significant 
environmental effects or involve unique or 
unknown environmental risks. 

 No    X           Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

4. This action would establish a 
precedent for future action or represent a 
decision in principle about future actions 
with potentially significant environmental 
effects. 

 No   X           Uncertain                Yes         
 

   

  



CEC-10-69 

5. This action would have a direct 
relationship to other actions with 
individually insignificant but cumulatively 
significant environmental effects. 

 No   X            Uncertain                Yes         
 

   
 
6. This action would have significant 
impacts on properties listed, or eligible for 
listing, on the National Register of Historic 
Places as determined by the bureau (in 
coordination with a Reclamation cultural 
resources professional). 

 No    X           Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

7. This action would have significant 
impacts on species listed, or proposed to be 
listed, on the List of Endangered or 
Threatened Species, or have significant 
impacts on designated critical habitat for 
these species. 

 No   X           Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

8. This action would violate a Federal, 
State, local, or tribal law or requirement 
imposed for protection of the environment. 

 No   X            Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

9. This action would affect Indian Trust
Assets (ITA) (To be completed by 
Reclamation official responsible for ITA). 

  No   X           Uncertain                Yes         
 

 
 

  

10. This action would have a 
disproportionately high and adverse effect 
on low income or minority populations. 

 No    X           Uncertain                Yes         

 
 

  

11. This action would limit access to and
ceremonial use of Indian sacred sites on 
Federal lands by Indian religious 

 

practitioners or significantly adversely affect 
the physical integrity of such sacred sites. 

 No   X           Uncertain                Yes        

  



CEC-10-69 

 
12. This action would contribute to the 
introduction, continued existence, or spread 
of noxious weeds or non-native invasive 
species known to occur in the area or actions 
that may promote the introduction, growth, 
or expansion of the range of such species. 
 
 
 

  
No   X           Uncertain                Yes        

NEPA Action:   Categorical Exclusion    X      EA                 EIS ___ 
 
Environmental commitments, explanation, and/or remarks: 
 

Yes  No Environmental commitments are required and attached. 
  
  San Joaquin Kit Fox Avoidance and Minimization Measures  
 
  Giant Garter Snake Avoidance and Minimization Measures 
 
  California Tiger Salamander Avoidance and Minimization Measures 
 
  California Red-Legged Frog Avoidance and Minimization Measures 
  

  Other:  
 
 

CMWD is considering installing vinyl-coated chain link fencing in either a green or brown color 
in order to minimize any potential visual/aesthetic impacts. 
 
In some areas where the existing barbed-wire fencing is still functional across drainages and high 
points, the barbed-wired fencing would be left in place in order to facilitate animal passage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  













 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Interdepartmental Memo 
            
DATE:  October 8, 2010 
 
TO: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
FROM:  Park Services Manager, Carol Belser  
 
SUBJECT: Trout Purchase for 2010/2011 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the purchase of live rainbow trout for a total cost of $58,140 from 
Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch in Bridgeport, Nebraska pending water quality report results from Scripps 
Institution Laboratory.      
  
BACKGROUND: 
  
The purchase of live rainbow trout, required to be supplied by distributors approved by the California 
Department of Fish and Game (DFG), was authorized by Dr. Dwayne Maxwell, a DFG representative.  Bids 
were solicited from several suppliers located in California, Oregon and Nebraska.  The total bid for $60,000 was 
as follows: 
 
 (a) Live rainbow trout between ¾ and 1 pound per fish, the total cost of which was not to exceed forty-
five thousand dollars ($40,000), and 
 (b) Live rainbow trout between two and three pounds per fish, the total cost of which was not to exceed 
twenty thousand dollars ($20,000). 
 
Three bids were received by the deadline of September 30, 2010.  Received bids included: Mt. Lassen Trout 
Farms, Desert Springs and Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch.  Chalk Mound was the apparent lowest responsible 
bidder with a bid of $3.23 per pound for both sizes of fish.  
 
Staff investigated the Chalk Mound Trout Farm and have received positive feedback from the California 
Department of Fish and Game Senior Biologist and Pathologist.  Chaulk Mound provided staff with a pathology 
report dated May 26, 2010 from Washington Animal Disease Diagnostic Laboratory that showed negative for 
pathogens.  That report was forwarded to the California Department of Fish and Game and the District’s 
Fisheries Biologist.  Reference checks provided very good feedback on deliveries to California.  A water quality 
sample was taken by the State of Nebraska and sent to Scripps Institution in California the week of October 4, 
but as of the date of this report the results are not available.  
 
The results of the water quality test for invasive species (Quagga and Zebra Mussels) are expected to be 
available by the Board meeting date of October 13, 2010.  Staff recommends the District move forward with this 
purchase provided the results are negative.  The water source for the facility is well water which protects from 
infestations of invasive species, and it is noteworthy that hatchery egg (triploid, kamloop strain) are provided 
from Trout Lodge in Washington, the same source as the previous trout purchase.   
  
If approved the trout will be planted prior to December 31, 2010 assuming the lake water temperature is 
compatible with a trout plant. 
 
The introduction of additional trout will enhance the recreational fishing experience and increase the possibility 
that new record trout will be caught at Lake Casitas.  The current record at Lake Casitas is 9.25 pounds caught 
in 1985.  In addition, the trout also supply the bass with a high protein food source thereby providing a 
secondary benefit.  



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 7, 2010 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Adjustment of the Participation Funding – Watershed Coordinator – Ventura River 

Watershed Council 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to provide an annual 
participation cost of $2,667 for a Ventura River Watershed Coordinator position for a period of three 
years, in cooperation with the many other local agencies in the Ventura River area. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
At the regular meeting of the Board on September 8, 2010, the Board approved a three-year cost 
participation, at $1,778 annually, for the Ventura River Watershed Coordinator position.  AT that time, 
it was recognized that several agencies were not going to participate in the cost sharing and that the 
$1,778 would likely be adjusted.  At the Board meeting of September 22, 2010, it was announced that 
the new participation cost for the District was increased to $2,667.  Director Word requested that this 
new participation cost be brought back to the Board for consideration. 
 
Since 2006, Casitas has been a participative member of the Ventura River Watershed Council and a 
part of the integrated regional watershed management planning effort.  Through this participation, 
Casitas and other members of the Council have been able to obtain grant funding through Proposition 
50. Most recently is Casitas’ grant to assist Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company with improving 
water supply reliability.  The members of the Council have cooperatively contributed to cover the cost 
of having a County employee administer the Council meetings.  Recently, the Council decided to 
pursue Prop 84 grant funding and matching funds from Council members to retain a full-time 
watershed coordinator.   The grant is to fund the position for three years during which time the top 
priority for this person would be to facilitate the development of a watershed plan and seek grants for 
the Ventura River Watershed Council.  The watershed coordinator will be supervised and supported 
by the Ojai Valley Land Conservancy Director.  The cost of the position is $70,000, of which $17,500 
per year is to be sought through member matching funds.   
 
The cost participation by other agencies and non-profit organizations is as follows: 
 City of Ventura     $5,333/yr 
 Ventura County Watershed Protection District $5,333 
 Ojai Valley Sanitary District    $2,667 
 Casitas Municipal Water District   $2,667 
 Ventura Hillside Coalition    $   500 
 Matilija Coalition/Surfrider Foundation  $   500 
 Ojai Valley Land Conservancy   $   500   
 
The Board’s consideration to provide a portion of the matching funding is greatly appreciated 
by the other participants. 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  October 5th, 2010 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: Denise Collin – Accounting Manager / Treasurer 
Re:  Recommendation to change Banking Institution 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
  
It is recommended to approve the change of Banking Institutions from Bank of America to 
Rabobank, N.A. for General Fund, Accounts Payable Fund, Payroll Fund, Visa Fund and Money 
Market Investing. 
 
BACKGROUND:    
 

The District is currently banking with Bank of America.  During fiscal year 2009/2010, bank 
fees from Bank of America have increased 48% resulting in total bank fees for 2009/2010 of 
$26,500. A request was made from Bank of America for a proposal to reduce banking fees as 
well as from Rabobank.  The following proposals were reviewed by the Finance Committee; 
 
Bank of America’s proposal would require a deposit and on going balance of $12,500,000. into a 
non interest bearing account to offset all banking fees.  All products, services and fees would still 
apply but be offset by the balance in the account. 
 
A proposal from Rabobank’s Government Banking Division would require a deposit and on 
going balance of $4,500. into a non interest bearing account to off set all banking fees.  They 
also offer a money market account that is indexed directly to the monthly LAIF rate, equal to the 
previous month’s rate plus a 20 basis point or .20% over LAIF on all funds kept in that account.  
The Funds are collateralized 110% as per state law.   
 
Rabobank is AAA rated by Moody’s and S&P, they will lock in the banking fee’s rates for three 
years, they will provide a discounted armored car transport service from LCRA and the local 
branch is located in Oak View.  
 
Rabobank offers all of the products and services that Bank of America offers, with higher 
interest yields and less annual banking fees. 
 
In accordance with Water Code Section 71311, the Board shall designate a depository or 
depositories to have the custody of the funds of the District.  The finance Committee suggested 
that this change be considered by the Board. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  October 5th, 2010 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: Denise Collin – Accounting Manager / Treasurer 
Re:  Recommendation to set Reserves 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
  
It is recommended to approve the submitted Reserve Statement and to continue to build 
additional Un-Restricted, Un-Designated reserves. 
 
BACKGROUND:    
 

Reserves calculated for the 2010 / 2011 fiscal year have resulted in a balance of 
$693,207.25 in Un-Restricted, Un-Designated funds. 

 
The 2010 / 2011 Board Approved Budget is in deficit of $1,128,652.02. It is recommended to 
use $772,192.00 of Storm Damage Reserves for the Capital Improvement cost of the Rincon 2m 
Pipeline Replacement approved in this fiscal year’s Budget.   

 
It is also recommended to use the Un-Restricted, Un-Designated funds of $693,207.25 to balance 
the remaining deficit of the 2010 / 2011 Board Approved Budget of $356,460.02.  

 
After the recommendations stated above a total of $336,747.23 will remain Un-Restricted, Un-
Designated for the year 2010 / 2011. 
 
  



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  October 8, 2010 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM: Denise Collin – Accounting Manager / Treasurer 
Re:  Business Ordinance 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the revised Business Ordinance. 
  
BACKGROUND:    

 

Brown Armstrong CPA, finished their Interim Audit of the District on August 11, 2010 
with the recommendation that we revise our current Business Ordinance to reflect the 
Board Approved authorization to the Assistant to the General Manager, that, in his 
absence authorizes the purchase of materials, supplies and services as well as sign 
checks for the Payable and Payroll fund.   
 
 
 
  



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 PRESCRIBING A SYSTEM OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 71304 of the California Water Code provides that the Board of 
Directors may prescribe by ordinance a system of business administration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable to have a system of business administration relative to 
accounting, auditing, and disbursement of moneys by Casitas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable to change the signature requirements for the general fund bank 
account; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 
 1.  Budget.  The General Manager is hereby directed to prepare annually a fiscal budget no 
later than the second regular meeting in May. The budget so planned and submitted shall reflect the 
general policies of the Board of Directors and the anticipated expenditures to carry out such policies. 
 The General Manager shall submit the budget in such form and substance that it will clearly reflect 
the planned program of Casitas' operations and improvements and will comply with the form 
prescribed by the County Auditor. 
 
  Obligations shall be incurred only within the detailed provisions of the applicable 
budget, subject to the following exceptions: 
 
  (1) Unbudgeted obligations may be incurred within the limits of funds available 
for expenditures in the fiscal year if approved in advance by the Board of Directors or upon approval 
by the General Manager if necessary for protection of life or property. 
 
  (2) The General Manager may make transfers between detailed budget items 
within a single department provided the amounts budgeted within the department for capital outlay 
and operation and maintenance, respectively, are not exceeded.  The Board shall routinely be 
advised of said transfers. 
 
 2. Purchase of Materials, Supplies, and Services.  The General Manager is hereby 
authorized to execute purchase orders and contracts not exceeding $20,000. without prior Board 
approval, provided that this limitation shall not apply to replenish warehouse stores stock.  Purchases 
for this purpose shall be made in an amount equal to but not exceeding an amount necessary to 
maintain the minimum quantities of stock on hand as determined by the General Manager to be 
economical and necessary for Casitas' needs.  All purchases in excess of $300 shall normally be 
supported by an executed purchase order or contract, and all proposed expenditures shall be verified 
to ascertain that provision has been included in the budget for the activity or expense intended.  
Exceptions might be an emergency situation, an order that does not arrive on time, the need for 
supplies that are not in the warehouse, or services that need to be performed in order to determine 
what needs to be replaced and/or repaired.  In these instances, an invoice and requisition will be 
furnished that fully explains the reason for not following normal procedures along with the approval 

Comment [D1]: Was $10,000.00 



of the supervisor who accepts responsibility for incurring the expenditures.  The General Manager 
may delegate to the Accounting Manager authority to execute individual purchase orders up to 
$1,000.  
 
In the General Managers absence, or an emergency situation the Assistant to the General Manager 
will have authorization to purchase materials, supplies and services not exceeding $20,000. 
 
  a. No purchase order shall be issued unless moneys for payment of Casitas' 
obligations thereunder are available for expenditure under the budget applicable to the year in which 
such purchase order is issued. 
 
  b. No purchase order shall be issued unless it relates to the operation and 
maintenance of Casitas or Ventura River Project facilities or to a construction project approved by 
the Board. 
 
  c. From time to time, by resolution, the Board of Directors shall adopt a 
statement of terms and conditions applicable to construction, alteration or repair of Casitas' facilities 
in the form prescribed by Casitas' attorney.  The General Manager shall be authorized to approve 
change orders as recommended by the Engineer providing the total increased cost of all change 
orders does not exceed 5 percent of the total contract amount or $20,000, whichever is greater. 
 
  d. The General Manager in his purchasing decisions shall consider costs of 
transportation to firms outside the County as opposed to firms inside the County when making 
purchasing decisions and shall also consider any taxes to be paid on items outside the County as 
being an extra cost, while those sales taxes inside the County may be discounted from the total bid 
when considering award.  Should the differences in bid price be greater than those amounts of 
transportation and taxes, the General Manager shall award the purchase of goods and services to the 
lowest responsible bidder. 
 
 3. Collection and Deposit of Revenues.  A "General Fund Bank Account" shall be 
established and maintained in a bank designated by the Board of Directors and all revenue, unless 
otherwise provided, shall be deposited therein.  The Board of Directors may, from time to time, 
direct the General Manager to establish and maintain special bank accounts for the handling of funds 
received or set aside for specific purposes. 
 
  All revenue collected shall be accounted for in a manner that will indicate the source, 
nature, and amount of each collection.  Collections so made shall be deposited intact in the bank 
accounts established. 
 
 4. Disbursements.   
 
  a. Routine financial obligations of Casitas shall be paid from a special fund 
designated as the "Payables Fund Account" established in a bank designated by the Board of 
Directors.  Funds in the payables fund account shall be replenished from time to time from the 
general funds account in order to enable Casitas to meet its routine fiscal obligations.   The General 
Manager shall assure that checks made from the General Fund to replenish the "Payables Fund 
Account" shall not exceed the total amount of the bi-monthly payables list. or $500,000 whichever is 
lower.  In the event that the General Manager or Accounting Manager were unavailable to co-sign a 
payables or payroll check, the Board member requested to co-sign will require a verification of the 
request by the Accounting Manager or General Manager.  Disbursements from the payables fund 
account shall be authorized: 

Comment [D2]: Is this verbiage ok 

Comment [RV3]: Recommend 
deletion.  

Comment [RV4]: Recommend 
deletion as we are unsure what this is.



 
   (1) By a check signed by any combination of the following two 
signatures: 
 
    (a) The General Manager, Accounting Manager, Assistant to the 
General Manager and any member of the Board of Directors. 
 
   (2) Under no circumstances shall any person authorized under this 
ordinance to sign checks of Casitas sign a blank or incomplete check.  Any person who does not 
comply with this provision shall be subject to severe disciplinary action. 
 
  An audit of all claims against Casitas shall be made prior to presentation of the 
checks for signature.  Such audit shall consist of a verification as to accuracy and completeness of all 
documents supporting payment; i.e., copy of purchase order, executed receiving and inspection 
report, and vendor's invoice or statement.  Should a vendor not honor Casitas purchase orders but 
provide the lowest price for an item, the General Manager may issue a payables check to the vendor 
for the item receiving in return an invoice for the item for audit purposes.  Reimbursable personal 
expense claims shall be approved by the General Manager.  Personal expenditures for which 
reimbursement may be claimed shall include only expenses incurred while an employee, officer, or 
director is acting in his official capacity as a Casitas representative.  All claims for reimbursement 
must be for goods or services which are ordinary and necessary for the fulfillment of Casitas duties, 
and such expenses shall, where practicable, be documented by checks, receipts, or other evidence, 
such evidence to be submitted at the time request for reimbursement is made. 
 
  A separate voucher authorization list covering disbursements made from the 
payables fund account showing check number, payee, description of materials or services purchased, 
and amount shall be prepared and accompany each general fund check presented for signature.  Each 
list shall be certified correct by the Casitas Accounting Manager and submitted to the Board of 
Directors for ratification. Signatures of a majority of the Board members on the voucher list shall 
constitute Board approval. 
 
  A fidelity bond covering Casitas officers authorized to sign checks on the payables 
fund account shall be in force at all times.  The bond shall be in an amount sufficient to cover the 
maximum limit of the payables fund account. 
 
  b. A petty cash fund of $800 shall be maintained, and expenditures may be 
made from this fund only for individual expenditures not in excess of $75.  Expenditures may be 
made for postage, freight and express bills, invoices for materials, reimbursement of personal 
expenses, meal allowances, and in payment of encroachment permit fees, licenses, or other charges 
levied by a county, state agency, public utility, or railroad company in connection with the granting 
to Casitas of rights in property owned or controlled by such grantors and other similar purposes. 
 
  c. Funds transferred to the payables fund account and all other withdrawals 
from the general fund account shall be authorized by the signatures of any two members of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
  d. Payroll obligations of Casitas shall be paid from a special fund designated as 
the "Payroll Fund Account" established in a bank designated by the Board of Directors.  The payroll 
fund account shall be replenished on a biweekly basis in the amount of the biweekly payroll from the 
general fund account in order to enable Casitas to meet its payroll obligations.  Disbursements from 
the payroll fund account shall be authorized: 

Comment [RV5]: Added to the policy 
per previous resolution by the Board. 

Deleted: officer

Deleted: officer

Comment [RV6]: Recommend 
deletion as we are not aware of any 
bonding at the district. 



 
   (1) By a check signed by facsimile signatures of the General  Manager 
and the Accounting Manager.   
 
   (2) By a check signed by any combination of the following two 
signatures: 
 
    (a) The General Manager, Accounting Manager, Assistant to the 
General Manager and any member of the Board of Directors. 
 
 
   (3) Under the payroll system, at the option of each of Casitas' employees, 
either issue a payroll check to said employee in the amount of such employee's net pay as computed, 
or credit said net pay to the bank account of such employee.  Statements shall be provided to 
employees electing to have their net pay so credited. 
 
   (4) Under no circumstances shall any person authorized under this 
ordinance to sign checks of Casitas sign a blank or incomplete check.  Any person who does not 
comply with this provision shall be subject to severe disciplinary action. 
 
    The payroll register shall be used as the voucher authorization list for 
payroll disbursements.  Each list shall be certified correct by the Casitas Data Processing Accounting 
Manager and submitted to the Board of Directors for ratification.  Signatures of a majority of the 
Board members on the voucher list shall constitute Board approval. 
 
    The Accounting Manager shall be responsible for the password 
security within the Incode Accounting Software for check signing digital signatures.  This password 
will be required to be entered into the system by the Accounting Manager or Assistant to the General 
Manager before each check writing batch for all funds. the checksigner machine and facsimile plate. 
 The facsimile plate and keys to the checksigner shall be kept by the Accounting Manager and the 
General Manager.  In order to use the facsimile signing system, the Accounting Manager or General 
Manager must provide the facsimile plate from the safe and unlock the checksigner machine.  The 
check  signer system must be secured after use.  A payroll check log shall be maintained to keep a 
record of the checks signed by facsimile.  A payroll check log shall be maintained to keep a record 
of the checks signed digitally. 
 
  e. A separate voucher authorization list covering disbursements made from the 
general fund account showing check number, payee, description of the transaction, and amount shall 
be prepared and accompany each check presented for signature.  The list shall be certified correct by 
the Casitas Accounting Manager and submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.  Signature of 
a majority of the Board members on the voucher authorization list shall constitute approval of claims 
and authorization for the signatures of any two members of the Board of Directors in payment of 
same. 
 
  f. Disbursements from special bank accounts established for the handling of 
funds received or set aside for specific purposes, other than the payables fund account referred to in 
"a" above or the payroll funds account referred to in "d" above, shall be accomplished pursuant to 
instructions approved by the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 5. Paying interest on deposit moneys.  Special projects such as meter and service 

Comment [RV7]: Added to the policy 
per previous resolution by the Board. 

Deleted: officer

Deleted: officer

Comment [D8]: Delete

Comment [D9]: Delete 

Comment [D10]: Added

Deleted: n

Deleted: ¶



installations, pipeline construction, fire hydrant installations, etc. require money deposits.  Standard 
connection fees are not considered special projects and do not earn interest upon deposit.  On 
deposits of $10,000 or less, no interest will be earned or returned to the depositor.  Deposits in 
excess of $10,000 shall earn simple interest similar to a bank deposit account at a rate of 5%.  
Casitas shall establish a liability account in the General Ledger in the depositor's name.  Interest 
shall be earned by the depositor from date of deposit.  When expenditures are incurred by Casitas on 
the project, interest will be earned on the deposit less any expenditures to date.  Funds in excess of 
the project will be returned to the depositor.  Where deposits are less than Casitas expenditures on 
the project, the depositor shall pay Casitas the remaining costs plus interest lost based on a usury rate 
of 10%. 
 
 6. Powers, functions, and duties assigned herein to the General Manager, Assistant to 
the General Manager and those assigned to the Accounting Manager, with the exception of the 
signing of checks, may be delegated by them to the staff member acting in their respective capacities 
when they are absent from the office. 
 
 7.  Bidding Requirements.  The General Manager is directed to establish a bidding 
procedure for the District.  For purchases up to $75 no requisition is required.  From $76 to $1,000 
one informal written bid is required; from $1001 to $34,999 three informal written bids are required; 
$35,000 and over requires formal bids consisting of written specs of goods & services with written 
bid after appropriate public notice.  
 
  A.   Bidding Requirements for Small Projects:  If, in the opinion of the General 
Manager, it is difficult for the District to obtain bids for small jobs, the General Manager may 
award purchase orders for work at a cost equal to or less than $20,000 if the following 
requirements are met: 
 
There are funds available in the unencumbered budget for the work. 
An estimate is made by staff of the cost of the work before the Purchase Order is issued. 
The work can be completed on a time-and-materials basis. 
The District is provided a bill detailing the cost of time and materials. 
A report is made to the Board to be placed on the Information Items section of the Agenda which 

will detail the estimate and the cost, and review the quality of work by the contractor.” 
 
  B.       Sole Source Purchases.  The General Manager can approve sole source 
purchasing as an exception to section 7 for any of the following reasons: 
 
 1. Only one available supplier with no available competition. 
 2.  Equipment that was purchased with bidding competition but support, spare parts and 
repairs have to be provided by factory reps with protected territory. 
 3. Services that have been bid out and results have been unsatisfactory to Casitas. 
 4. Products used to maintain system standard when significant spare parts inventories 
need to be maintained and readily available. 
 5. Utility Companies with which you have to work. 
 6. Purchases that require significant staff time to get to the location to conduct the 
business in comparison to the cost of item. 
 7. Agreements on Deposits 
 8. Sources to Call in Emergencies 
 
 8. Permits.  It shall be the general policy of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal 
Water District not to get permits from other public agencies, which are exempted by Governmental 

Comment [RV11]: Recommend 
deletion of this paragraph.  Not applicable

Comment [D12]: Added 

Comment [D13]: Changed from 
35,999. 

Deleted: For all purchases/contracts 
over $75 income or expense, the General 
Manager shall take bids.  From $75 to 
$34,999, informal bids shall be taken.  
Informal bids shall consist of calls to 
three (3) bidders minimum to obtain 
prices.  From $35,000 up, formal bids 
shall be taken.  Formal bids require a 
written specification of the goods and 
services and a written answer after 
appropriate public notice.

Deleted: 5

Comment [RV14]: Recommend 
deletion.  Steve does not provide a report 
for all PO’s issued.  He does provide 
information as necessary to the Board. 



Code Section 53091, or for recreation due to its federal enclave status.  However, Casitas shall get 
permits where, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, it is appropriate to do so. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       President, Casitas  
       Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary, Casitas 
Municipal Water District 

























Casitas Municipal Water District
Monthly Cost Analysis
2010/2011
10/06/2010

Marzula & Operation Fisheries Project Name Cost of the
Marzula  of Robles Fish Passage Fish Passage

11-5-21-5049-12 11-5-??-????-14 11-5-28-50??-??

2003/2004 0.00 132,143.20 6,066.93
2004/2005 0.00 298,006.35 39,124.63 8,079,888.06
2005/2006 274,270.75 144,052.92 93,406.52 0.00
2006/2007 194,409.73 110,707.78 188,651.75 114,790.04
2007/2008 21,111.90 117,299.80 272,644.56 0.00
2008/2009 1,207.75 88,201.00 307,739.00 0.00
2009/2010 216,797.47 124,874.54 342,756.94 0.00

Expenditures
July 0.00 3,089.39 20,641.01

August 330.76 12,596.61 23,810.79

September 2,095.70 17,477.19 24,117.60

October 0.00 0.00 0.00

November 0.00 0.00 0.00

December 0.00 0.00 0.00

January 0.00 0.00 0.00

Feburary 0.00 0.00 0.00 Less: Grants
CA Coastal Conservancy -1,750,000.00

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,500,000.00
CA Dept of Fish & Game -1,000,000.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 Pacific States Marine -8,988.86
    (Timber Debris Fence)

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 Pacific States Marine -18,980.00
    (Vaki Shroud)

June

Total Cost YTD 2,426.46 33,163.19 68,569.40 Total Cost TD    8,194,678.10

Less: Grant Funding    -4,277,968.86

Total Project Cost 710,224.06 1,048,448.78 1,318,959.73 Total Project Cost   3,916,709.24

Total: Operation of Robles, Fisheries and Fish Passage 6,284,117.75

Prepared by dcollin 10/06/2010 Page 1











   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

10/06/10
 

Weighed 
Average 

Type of Date of Amount of Current Rate of Date of % of Days to Days to
Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Deposit Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XS4S40 09/16/11 $726,316 $722,316 3.490% 07/01/10 5.77% 340 20
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XSP930 12/13/13 $743,750 $748,342 2.956% 07/01/10 5.98% 1147 69
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/15 $729,603 $742,441 2.775% 07/01/10 5.93% 1686 100
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWW470 03/09/12 $707,315 $707,000 1.116% 06/30/10 5.65% 513 29
*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/15 $807,683 $810,908 4.750% 07/19/10 6.48% 1841 119
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABS70 09/27/13 $766,605 $768,691 3.783% 07/01/10 6.14% 1071 66
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/14 $739,907 $750,092 2.849% 07/01/10 5.99% 1372 82
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACE70 09/21/12 $723,646 $721,875 2.066% 06/30/10 5.76% 705 41
*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACF40 12/15/11 $706,398 $706,342 1.116% 06/30/10 5.64% 429 24
*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/14 $739,123 $749,658 2.858% 07/01/10 5.99% 1420 85
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/18 $1,055,030 $1,090,541 1.326% 07/06/10 8.71% 2799 244
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828JW10 12/31/13 $709,352 $718,648 1.487% 04/01/10 5.74% 1165 67
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/14 $718,129 $733,306 2.080% 07/01/10 5.86% 1494 87
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828MB30 12/15/12 $709,707 $710,171 1.115% 06/30/10 5.67% 789 45
*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/20 $1,041,021 $1,081,187 1.342% 07/01/10 8.63% 3339 288
*TB US Treasury Notes 912828ML10 12/31/11 $707,191 $706,013 0.992% 06/30/10 5.64% 445 25

Accrued Interest (Interest paid at time of purchase) $58,062 $55,538

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $12,388,838 $12,523,069 76.76%

*CD CD - $0 $0 0.000% 0.00%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506 $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $1,667,570 $1,667,570 0.56% Estimated 10.22%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,124,379 $2,124,379 1.41% Estimated 13.02%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $16,180,787 $16,315,017 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $16,180,787 $16,252,981

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,648,108 $14,648,108

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST $177,397 $177,397
CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $59,505 $59,505 0.470%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $16,417,689 $16,551,919

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $14,916,249 $14,916,249

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit
*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 
** Local Agency Investment Fund 
*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.
**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 
and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.
All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 
investment policy.


	10-13-10 agenda.pdf
	9-22-10 min
	2010-10-06 Memo flex joints
	coyote grinders memo2010
	Board Report Senior Canyon Grant Project Approval of CEQA
	Resolution Senior Canyon-rev 9-29-10
	Bill list
	Water Res Minutes 09 20 2010
	Rec Minutes 10 06 10
	award fence memo
	Resolution fence
	CEC-10-069_CMWD_FenceReplacement1
	TroutPurchaseRecommendMemo-10 2010
	Watershed Coordinator Adjustment Memo 10 07 2010
	Recommendation to change Banking
	Recommendation of Reserves 2010-2011
	Memo - Business Ordinance - Disposal Policy
	BUS ADMIN ord rev-10
	Google Aps
	Board Report - Montly Costs 20010-11
	Sheet1

	LTR AWA
	News Articles
	Investment Report 10-6-2010
	A




